
         

 

 

WINDING CYPRESS 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

COLLIER COUNTY 
 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

MARCH 21, 2024 
1:00 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.windingcypresscdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 
AGENDA 

 WINDING CYPRESS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
Clubhouse at Winding Cypress 
7180 Winding Cypress Drive 

Naples, Florida 34114 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

March 21, 2024 
1:00 p.m. 

 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 

C. Proof of Publication..................................................................................................................................Page 1 

D. Establish a Quorum 

E. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

F. Approval of Minutes  

1. February 1, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Minutes……………………………………………….Page 2 

2. March 7, 2024 Workshop Minutes……………………………………………………………......Page 6 

G. Old Business 

H. New Business 

1. Consider Approval of Assignment and Assumption of Professional Services Agreement……….Page 9 

2. Accept and Receive Lake Erosion Evaluation Report…………………………………………….Page 25  

3. Discussion Regarding Next Steps Regarding Lake Erosion 

I. Administrative Matters 

1. Manager’s Report 

 Financials……………………………………………………………………………………….Page 26 

2. Attorney’s Report 

J. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

K. Board Members Comments 

L. Adjourn 



Publication Date
2024-03-11

Subcategory
Miscellaneous Notices

NOTICE OF BOARD MEETING OF THEWINDING CYPRESS
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
The Board of Supervisors of the Winding Cypress Community Development District (the District) will hold a
Board Meeting on March 21, 2024, at 1:00 p.m. at the Clubhouse at Winding Cypress located at 7180 Winding
Cypress Drive, Naples, Florida 34114.
The Board Meeting is open to the public and will be conducted in accordance with the provisions of Florida
law for community development districts. The Board Meeting may be continued in progress without additional
notice to a time, date, and location stated on the record. A copy of the agenda for the Board Meeting may be
obtained from the Districts website or from the District Manager, Special District Services, located at 2501A
Burns Road, Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410. There may be occasions when one or more Supervisors will
participate by telephone.
Pursuant to provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations
to participate in this Board Meeting is asked to advise the District O�ce at least forty-eight (48) hours before
the meeting by contacting the District Manager at (561) 630-4922 and/or toll free at 1-877-737-4922. If you
are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Florida Relay Service at 1-800-955-8770, who can aid you
in contacting the District O�ce.
A person who decides to appeal any decision made at this Board Meeting with respect to any matter
considered at the Board Meeting is advised that person will need a record of the proceedings and that
accordingly, the person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made including the
testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.
Meetings may be cancelled from time to time without advertised notice.
WINDING CYPRESS
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
www.windingcypresscdd.org
3/11/24 #9931308

Page 1



Page 1 of 4 
 

WINDING CYPRESS 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
FEBRUARY 1, 2024 

 
 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The  February 1, 2024, Regular Board Meeting of the Winding Cypress Community Development District 
(the “District”) was called to order at 1:00 p.m. at the Clubhouse at Winding Cypress located at 7180 
Winding Cypress Drive, Naples, Florida 34114. 
 
B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
C. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented that Notice of the Regular  Board Meeting had been published in the 
Naples Daily News on January 24, 2024, as legally required. 
 
D. CONSIDER APPOINTMENT TO BOARD VACANCY 
 
The Board previously had a chance to review the resume of Gerard O’Donohue and ask questions at a 
Workshop. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Ciriello, seconded by Mr. Petrovsky and passed unanimously appointing Gerard 
O’Donohue to Seat 5 to complete the term of office until 2026. 
 
E. ADMINISTER OATH OF OFFICE AND REVIEW BOARD MEMBER DUTIES & 
RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
Ms. Krizen administered the Oath of Office.  Ms. Willson gave a brief overview of a Board Member’s 
responsibilities, the Sunshine Law and Public Records Law.  Ms. Willson provided the opportunity for 
questions.  There were none.  
 
F. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
It was determined that the attendance of the following Supervisors constituted a quorum and it was in order 
to proceed with the meeting: 
 
Chairman Barbara Powell Absent 
Vice Chairman Alex Petrovsky Present 
Supervisor Gerard O’Donohue Present 
Supervisor Patrick Cirello Present 
Supervisor Paul Ellwood Absent 

 
Also present were the following Staff members: 
 

Page 2



Page 2 of 4 
 

District Manager Michelle Krizen Special District Services, Inc. 
District Counsel Alyssa Willson (via phone) Kutak Rock 
District Engineer Ted Tryka Agnoli Barber & Brundage, Inc. 

 
Also present were those indicated on the attached sign-in sheet. 
 
G. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
There was a consensus of the Board to add Resolution 2024-01 - Designate Board Positions under New 
Business since a new Board Member was added. 
 
H. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  December 7, 2023, Regular Board Meeting 
 
The minutes of the December 7, 2023, Regular Board Meeting were presented for consideration. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Ciriello, seconded by Mr. Petrovsky and passed unanimously approving the 
minutes of the December 7, 2023, Regular Board Meeting, as presented. 
 
 2.  January 18, 2024, Workshop 
 
The minutes of the January 18, 2024, Workshop were presented for consideration. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Ciriello, seconded by Mr. Petrovsky and passed unanimously approving the 
minutes of the January 18, 2024, Workshop, as presented. 
 
I. OLD BUSINESS 
 1.  Engineering Status Report 
 
Mr. Tryka reported that the fieldwork portion of the inspection had been completed.  A handout was shared 
with the Board to provide a sample of the report.  Each lake has several data points, all data points do not 
indicate an issue.  Each type of finding has a different code and will be easy to search and sort for specific 
data.  Mr. Petrovsky was able to observe when the lake behind his house was being inspected.  Mr. 
Petrovsky stated that he was impressed with the level of sophistication and detail.  Mr. Petrovsky asked 
about the drop-offs and drains.  A discussion ensued regarding drains and downspouts.  Further discussions 
will take place after the report has been reviewed and accepted.  
 
J. NEW BUSINESS 
 1.  Consider Resolution No. 2024-01 -   
 
Resolution No. 2024-01 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION 2024-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE WINDING CYPRESS COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT DESIGNATING A CHAIR, A VICE 
CHAIR, A SECRETARY, ASSISTANT SECRETARIES, A 
TREASURER AND AN ASSISTANT TREASURER OF THE 

Page 3



Page 3 of 4 
 

WINDING CYPRESS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
A motion was made by Mr. Petrovsky, seconded by Mr. Ciriello and passed unanimously adopting 
Resolution 2024-01, appointing Mr. O’Donohue as Assistant Secretary with the remaining officers staying  
the same.  
 
Ms. Krizen reminded the Board Members that they are eligible to receive up to $200 per meeting, not to 
exceed $2,400 per year.  Ms. Krizen asked each Board Member if they wished to receive payment for 
attending meetings. 
 
Gerard O’Donohue - Declined 
Patrick Ciriello - Declined 
Paul Ellwood – Declined 
Alex Petrovsky – Accepted 
 
It was noted that Ms. Krizen had previously asked Barbara Powell if she wished to receive payment for 
attending meetings and she declined payment. 
 
K. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 1.  Manager’s Report 
 
Ms. Krizen presented the financials.  There were no questions from the Board Members. 
 
There was a consensus of the Board to cancel the February Workshop.  The March 7, 2024, Regular Board 
Meeting will be a Workshop so that Mr. Tryka may present the Lake Bank Report.  The March 21, 2024, 
Workshop will be a Regular Board Meeting.  By making these changes, the Board will be able to accept 
the report more efficiently. 
 
 2.  Attorney’s Report 
 
There is new legislation that took effect this year requiring 4 hours of ethics training for Board Members. 
Ms. Krizen will forward information regarding options for training that meet the requirements. 
 
In addition, the filing of Form 1 – Statement of Financial Interests is now required to be filed electronically 
beginning this year.  This is an annual requirement even if you filled one out last year.  
 
L. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
Several residents commented on the lakes, drainage and repairs.  Until the report has been completed, the 
Board is unable to answer their questions. 
 
M. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
There were no additional comments from the Board Members. 
 
N. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, the Regular Board Meeting was adjourned at 
2:23 p.m. on a motion made by Mr. Petrovsky, seconded by Mr. Ellwood and passed unanimously. 

Page 4



Page 4 of 4 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    
Chairman/Vice Chairman Secretary/Assistant Secretary 
 
 
Date Approved   
 

Page 5



WINDING CYPRESS 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

WORKSHOP MEETING 
MARCH 7, 2024 

 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The  March 7, 2024, Workshop Meeting of the Winding Cypress Community Development 
District (the “District”) was called to order at 1:01 p.m. at the Clubhouse at Winding Cypress 
located at 7180 Winding Cypress Drive, Naples, Florida 34114. 
 
B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
C. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented that Notice of the Workshop Meeting had been published in 
the Naples Daily News on February 27, 2024, as legally required. 
 
D. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
It was determined that the attendance of the following Supervisors constituted a quorum and it was 
in order to proceed with the meeting: 
 
Chairman Barbara Powell Present 
Vice Chairman Alex Petrovsky Present 
Supervisor Patrick Cirello Present 
Supervisor Gerard O’Donohue Present 
Supervisor Paul Ellwood Absent 

 
Also present were the following Staff members: 
 
District Manager Michelle Krizen Special District Services, Inc. 

District Counsel Alyssa Willson Kutak Rock 

District Engineer Ted Tryka Agnoli Barber & Brundage, Inc. 

 
See attached sign-in sheet for those members of the public present.  
 
Alyssa Willson - left at 1:17 p.m. 
 
E. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 

Page 6



Ms. Willson went over difference between a Workshop and a Board Meeting.  Official action may 
not be taken at an advertised Workshop.  The difference between a Workshop and a Board Meeting 
is that in the first instance you cannot take any action and the public is on notice that no action will 
be taken.  The Board was provided with the opportunity to ask questions prior to Ms. Willson 
leaving the meeting.  The Board had no questions.  
 
F.  LAKE BANK INSPECTION DRAFT PRESENTATION 
 
Mr. Tryka provided each Board Member with a 75-page DRAFT report and gave an overview of 
the process and preparation of the report.  He further explained the Legend symbols used in the 
report. There were 1,012 data points used in the creation of the report, looking at the areas of 
Escarpment, Lake Bank Slope, Erosion, Rip-Rap, Rip-Rap Underlayment, Littoral Plantings, 
Exotic Plants, Silt, Control Structures and Miscellaneous.  Mr. Tryka reviewed a few lakes in detail 
and provided an overview of the findings. The most common finding in the report was ”Off-Site 
Erosion- Homes”  with 60.98% of the problems identified (downspouts conveying rooftop water). 
The Board asked if the design of the downspouts and drainage was common.  Mr. Tryka explained 
that it was frequently used by builders.  The Board expressed sincere thanks and praise for the 
detailed level of information in the report, noting that it will be invaluable moving forward.  
 
Mr. Tryka was asked to provide recommendations for repairs/prevention for the next meeting.  
 
G. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 
The residents were then provided with the opportunity to make comments. 
  
John Jensen stated his concern for the drainpipes. 
 
Dr. Bob Gorman asked if the “downspout design was typical.”  Mr. Tryka explained that the design 
was typical but the results were atypical. 
 
Jim Bailey questioned why the downspouts were not positioned to drain into the ponds as done in 
Michigan. The proper hook up is 4ft after the lowest level and several hook ups have been done, 
but if the work is done during the higher water times, it is challenging to place the pipe at the right 
level.  
  
 Mr. Tryka left the meeting at approximately 2:53 p.m. 
 
H. MANAGER UPDATES 

 
It was noted that the next Board Meeting was scheduled for March 21, 2023.  
 
Ms. Krizen explained that Ms. Willson was not asked to attend the Workshop until 10 this morning. 
Ms. Willson typically does not attend Workshops but with the report discussion, I had some 
potential questions.  I reached out to the Chair who agreed to Ms. Willson’s invitation.  Ms. 
Willson had a previous meeting scheduled for 1:30 but was able to join the Workshop for 30 
minutes.  

Page 7



 
I. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 

 
Mr. Petrovsky presented an excerpt from the Winding Cypress CDD Resolution 2021-01 Amended  
and Restated Rule of Procedure. Mr. Petrovsky believes that the Rules of Procedure overrule the 
Sunshine Law, noting his evidence as Resolution 2021-01. Though she defers to CDD Counsel, Ms. Powell 
replied that she understands state law to supersede CDD Board Resolutions or policies. Mr. Petrovsky 
disagreed and felt that the State gives the power to the CDD and wants the CDD to make rules. Ms. Krizen 
will reach out to Ms. Willson for a response or have her prepared to discuss this matter at the next meeting.  
Ms. Krizen will also send a link to a copy of 2024 Government in the Sunshine Manual to help better 
understand the law.  A discussion ensued regarding changing the remaining scheduled Workshops into 
Board Meetings.  The meeting types can be adjusted as needed on an individual basis at Board Meetings.  

Mr. Petrovsky suggested the possibility of a second opinion from Seabreeze Erosion Solutions. 
The consensus of the Board was that the District was not in a position to invite contractors to 
submit proposals at this time.   

J. ADJOURNMENT 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Ciriello, seconded by Mr. Petrovsky and passed unanimously 
adjourning the Workshop Meeting at 3:15 p.m.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    
Chairman/Vice Chairman Secretary/Assistant Secretary 
 
 
Date Approved   

Page 8



EXHIBIT A

ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, AGNOLI, BARBER & BRUNDAGE, INC.
(“Assignor”), for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged, for itself, its successors and assigns, hereby grants, conveys, transfers, assigns 
and delivers to LJA ENGINEERING INC. (“Assignee”), all of its right, title and interest in and to 
that certain Agreement for Professional Engineering Services dated October 19, 2023 for the 
provision of Engineering services thereto by and between the Assignor and Winding Cypress 
CDD (“Client”), and all purchase orders, task orders, or other such work authorizations thereto
(collectively, the “Agreement”), the true and correct copies of which are attached hereto as Exhibit 
“A” for the following project:

ABB Project Number: Project:
23-0110 Winding Cypress CDD

Assignee hereby assumes all rights, title, and interest of Assignor in the Agreement and 
agrees to be bound by and to fully perform and carry out the duties and obligations of Assignor in 
and relating to the Agreement.

Assignor acknowledges and agrees that it shall do, execute, acknowledge and deliver all 
such further acts, deeds, transfers, assignments, conveyances and assurances for the better 
assigning, granting, transferring, conveying and conferring unto Assignee, its successors, and 
assigns all the rights hereby granted, transferred, conveyed, assigned and delivered as Assignee 
or its successors or assigns shall require.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned does hereby execute this Assignment effective 
as of the 29th day of February 2024.

ASSIGNOR: AGNOLI, BARBER & BRUNDAGE, INC.

________________________________                    
Dominick J. Amico, President

ASSIGNEE: LJA ENGINEERING, INC.

________________________________                    
James D. Ross, President & CEO

Page 9



CONSENT OF CLIENT
 

 The undersigned, as “Client” under that certain Agreement, as more fully described above, 
hereby affirms and consents to the assignment and assumption of the Agreement by AGNOLI, 
BARBER & BRUNDAGE, INC. (the “Assignor”), to LJA ENGINEERING INC. (the “Assignee”), 
and further certifies: 
 

1. The Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties to it and has not 
been modified or amended. 
 

2. The Agreement, as of the date hereof, is in full force and effect, binding and enforceable 
in accordance with its terms, and, except as specifically set forth on Exhibit A attached 
hereto and made a part hereof, there are no other agreements, whether oral or written, or 
understandings of any nature between the Client and the Assignor which modify or amend 
the Agreement in any respect whatsoever. 
 

3. There exists no default by AGNOLI, BARBER & BRUNDAGE, INC. under the terms of the 
Agreement and there are no claims, actions, suits, or proceedings pending by the Client 
against AGNOLI, BARBER & BRUNDAGE, INC. 
 

The person executing this consent to assignment is duly authorized and empowered in all 
respects to do so on behalf of the undersigned Client. 
 
Winding Cypress CDD 
 
By:________________________________                     
 
Name:______________________________ 
 
Title:_______________________________ 
 
Date:_______________________________ 
   
 
Exhibit A: Agreement 
 
 
  
  

Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



ACCEPT AND RECEIVE LAKE EROSION 
EVALUATION REPORT 

 
TO BE DISTRIBUTED 

UNDER SEPARATE COVER 

Page 25



 Winding Cypress
Community Development District

   Financial Report For
January 2024

Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32


	Winding Cypress Community Development District - March 21, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	Approval of Minutes
	February 1, 2024 Regular Board Meeting
	March 7, 2024 Workshop Minutes

	Consider Approval of Assignment and Assumption of Professional Services Agreement
	Accept and Receive Lake Erosion Evaluation Report
	Financials




